

disturbances to the buffalo herd. In addition, the Commission proposes to amend this rule and R12-4-803 to remove the reference to 'Ranch' to increase consistency between Department rules. The Commission proposes to amend R12-4-803(31) Upper Verde River Wildlife Area, to reflect newly acquired property.

Amendments are also made to ensure consistency within Article 8 rules and also to ensure conformity to the Arizona Administrative Procedures Act, Secretary of State, and Governor's Regulatory Review Council rulemaking format and style requirements.

7. A reference to any study relevant to the rule that the agency reviewed and proposes to either rely on or not rely on in its evaluation of or justification for the rule, where the public may obtain or review each study, all data underlying each study, and any analysis of each study and other supporting material:

The agency did not rely on any study in its evaluation of or justification for the rules.

8. A showing of good cause why the rule is necessary to promote a statewide interest if the rulemaking will diminish a previous grant of authority of a political subdivision of this state:

Not applicable

9. The summary of the economic, small business, and consumer impact, if applicable:

Exempt under A.R.S. § 41-1005(A)(1).

10. A description of the changes between the proposed rules, including supplemental notices, and the final rulemaking package (if applicable):

Not applicable

11. A summary of the public or stakeholder comments made about the rulemaking and the agency response to the comments, (if applicable):

The agency did not receive any public or stakeholder comments about the rulemaking.

12. Any other matters prescribed by statute that are applicable to the specific agency or to any specific rule or class of rules. Additional matters include but are not limited to:

a. Whether the rule requires a permit, whether a general permit is used, and if not, the reason why a general permit is not used:

The rule does not require a permit.

b. Whether a federal law is applicable to the subject of the rule, whether the rule is more stringent than federal law, and if so, citation to the statutory authority to exceed the requirements of federal law:

Federal law is not applicable to the subject of the rule.

c. Whether a person submitted an analysis to the agency that compares the rule's impact on the competitiveness of business in this state to the impact on business in other states:

The agency did not receive an analysis.

13. A list of any incorporated material and its location in the rule:

Not applicable

14. Whether the rule was previously made, amended, repealed, or renumbered as an emergency rule? If so, shall state where the text changed between the emergency and exempt rulemaking packages:

The rule was not previously made, amended, repealed, or renumbered as an emergency rule.

15. The full text of the rules follows:

TITLE 12. NATURAL RESOURCES
CHAPTER 4. GAME AND FISH COMMISSION
ARTICLE 8. WILDLIFE AREAS AND DEPARTMENT PROPERTY

Section

R12-4-802. Wildlife Area and Other Department Managed Property Restrictions

R12-4-803. Wildlife Area and Other Department Managed Property Boundary Descriptions

ARTICLE 8. WILDLIFE AREAS AND DEPARTMENT PROPERTY

R12-4-802. Wildlife Area and Other Department Managed Property Restrictions

A. No person shall violate the following restrictions on Wildlife Areas:

1. Alamo Wildlife Area (located in Units 16A and 44A):
 - a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only, except an individual may use a vehicle on or off road to pick up lawfully taken big game animals. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - d. No change
2. Allan Severson Wildlife Area (located in Unit 3B):
 - a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - ~~e.~~ ~~Posted portions closed to discharge of all firearms from April 1 to through July 31 annually.~~
 - ~~e-f.~~ No change
3. Aravapai Canyon Wildlife Area (located in Units 31 and 32):
 - a. No change
 - b. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - ~~b-c.~~ ~~Closed~~ Open to all hunting as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of all firearms.
 - ~~e.~~ ~~Open to all hunting as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318.~~
4. Arlington Wildlife Area (located in Unit 39)
 - a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. No change
 - e. No change
 - f. ~~Closed~~ Open to all hunting as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of rifled firearms.
 - ~~g.~~ ~~Open to all hunting as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-3.~~
5. Base and ~~Meridan~~ Meridian Wildlife Area (located in Unit 39 and, 26M, ~~and~~ 47M):

- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails, or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. No target or clay bird shooting.
 - ~~e.f.~~ Closed Open to all hunting as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of rifled firearms.
 - ~~f.~~ No target or clay bird shooting.
 - ~~g.~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318.
6. Becker Lake Wildlife Area (located in Unit 1):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - d. No change
 - e. No change
 - f. No change
 - g. ~~Closed~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of centerfire and rimfire rifled firearms.
 - ~~h.~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318.
7. Bog Hole Wildlife Area (located in Unit 35B):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails, or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. No change
8. Chevelon Canyon Ranches Wildlife Area (located in Unit 4A):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads and areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.

- e. No change
9. Chevelon Creek Wildlife Area (located in Unit 4B):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads and areas only, except as permitted under R12-4-110(G). This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. No change
 - f. Additional posted portions closed to public entry from October 1 ~~to~~ through February 1 annually.
 - g. No change
10. Cibola Valley Conservation and Wildlife Area (located in unit 43A):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change.
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated and administrative roads and areas only for the purpose of retrieving lawfully taken big game animals. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. Posted portions closed to public entry.
 - ~~e.f.~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except legal weapons restricted to shotguns shooting shot and bow and arrow ~~except posted portions open to public entry.~~
11. No change
- a. No change
 - b. No change
12. Cluff Ranch Wildlife Area (located in Unit 31):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails, or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. Posted portions around Department housing and Pond Three are closed to discharge of all firearms.
 - ~~f. Posted portions around Pond Three are closed to discharge of all firearms.~~
 - ~~g.f.~~ Closed Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318. except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of centerfire rifled firearms.
 - ~~h. Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318.~~
13. Colorado River Nature Center Wildlife Area (located in Unit 15D):

- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel ~~prohibited only, except as permitted under R12-4-110(G)~~ on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. No change
14. No change
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. No change
 - e. No change
 - f. No change
15. House Rock Wildlife Area (located in Unit 12A):
- a. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - b. No change
16. Jacques Marsh Wildlife Area (located in Unit 3B):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - ~~d-e. Closed~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318 ,except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of ~~centerfire and rimfire~~ rifled firearms.
 - e. ~~Open to all other hunting in season as permitted under R12-3-304 and R12-4-318.~~
17. Lamar Haines Wildlife Area (located in Unit 7):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. ~~No motorized vehicles.~~ Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only, except as permitted under R12-4-110(G). This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. No change
18. Luna Lake Wildlife Area (located in Unit 1):

- a. Posted portions closed to public entry from February 15 ~~to~~ through July 31 annually.
 - b. No change
 - c. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
19. Mittry Lake Wildlife Area (located in Unit 43B):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - d. Posted portions closed to public entry from November 15 ~~to~~ through February 15 annually.
 - e. No change
20. Powers Butte (Mumme Farm) Wildlife Area (located in Unit 39):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on posted designated roads, trails or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. If conducted during an event approved under R12-4-804, target or clay bird shooting is permitted in designated areas only.
 - f. ~~Closed~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of centerfire rifled firearms.
 - f. ~~If conducted during an event approved under R12-4-804, target or clay bird shooting is permitted in designated areas only.~~
 - g. ~~Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318.~~
21. Quigley Wildlife Area (located in Unit 41):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - d. Posted portions closed to public entry from September 1 ~~to~~ through March 31 annually.
 - e. No change
22. Raymond Wildlife Area (located in Unit 5B):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318 except posted portions

- closed to hunting periodically during hunting seasons.
- d. Members of the public are prohibited from being within ¼ mile of the Raymond ~~Ranch~~ Wildlife Area buffalo herd while on Raymond Wildlife area, except when ~~hunting as authorized under subsection (A)(22)(e) or~~ taking buffalo or ~~when~~ accompanied by Department personnel.
 - e. Prior to entering Raymond Wildlife Area, members of the public shall sign in at a posted sign-in kiosk and by doing so acknowledge they have read and shall comply with the posted Raymond Wildlife Areas restrictions.
23. Robbins Butte Wildlife Area (located in Unit 39):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails or areas only from one hour before sunrise to one hour after sunset daily. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. No change
 - f. No change
 - ~~g. Posted portions around Department housing closed to discharge of all firearms.~~
 - ~~h. Closed to discharge of centerfire rifled firearms.~~
 - ~~i.g.~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318: except:
 - i. Posted portions around Department housing closed to the discharge of all firearms; and
 - ii. Wildlife area is closed to the discharge of centerfire rifled firearms.
24. Roosevelt Lake Wildlife Area (located in Units 22, 23, and 24B):
- a. Posted portions closed to public entry from November 15 ~~to~~ through February 15 annually.
 - b. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - ~~b.c.~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except posted portions closed to hunting from November 15 through February 15 annually.
25. Santa Rita Wildlife Area (located in unit 34A):
- a. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only, except as permitted under ~~R12-5-533(D)~~ R12-4-110(G). This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - b. No change
 - e. ~~All other uses of state land will be according to the provisions of the Arizona State Land Department's Recreational Permit.~~
26. Sipe White Mountain Wildlife Area (located in Unit 1):
- a. No change

- b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only, except as permitted under R12-4-110(G). This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - ~~e. Posted portions around Department housing closed to discharge of all firearms.~~
 - e. Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except posted portions around Department housing closed to the discharge of all firearms.
 - ~~f. Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318.~~
27. Springerville Marsh Wildlife Area (located in Unit 2B):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - ~~d-e.~~ Closed to discharge of all firearms.
 - ~~e-f.~~ Closed to hunting.
28. Sunflower Flat Wildlife Area (located in Unit 8):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. ~~No motorized~~ Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only, except as permitted under R12-4-110(G). This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - d. No change.
29. Three Bar Wildlife Area (located in Unit 22):
- a. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails, or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - b. Open to hunting in season, as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except the area within the fenced enclosure inside the loop formed by Tonto National Forest Road 647, also known as the Walnut Canyon Enclosure, which is closed to hunting, unless otherwise provided under Commission Order.
30. Tucson Mountain Wildlife Area (located in Unit 38M):
- a. ~~Closed to the discharge of all firearms.~~ Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - b. Open to all ~~other~~ hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except: ~~those portions~~

- i. Portions posted as closed to hunting, and
 - ii. Wildlife area is closed to the discharge of all firearms.
 - c. No change
31. Upper Verde River Wildlife Area (located in Unit 8 and 19A):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel ~~prohibited except for~~ permitted on designated roads or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. ~~Closed~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of firearms within a one mile radius of visitor parking area.
 - f. ~~Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318.~~
 - ~~g.f.~~ All dogs must remain on leash except for hunting dogs during a legal open season.
32. Wenima Wildlife Area (located in Unit 2B):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. No change
 - d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only, except as permitted under R12-4-110(G). This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - e. Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except ~~Posted~~ posted portions closed to the discharge of all firearms.
 - f. ~~Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318.~~
33. White Mountain Grasslands Wildlife Area (located in Unit 1):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads or areas only, except as permitted under R12-4-110(G). This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.
 - d. No change
 - e. No change
34. Whitewater Draw Wildlife Area (located in Unit 30B):
- a. No change
 - b. No change
 - c. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, trails, or areas only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency

vehicles.

d. No change

e. ~~Closed to discharge of centerfire rifled firearms.~~

~~f.e.~~ Open to all hunting in season as permitted under R12-4-304 and R12-4-318, except the wildlife area is closed to the discharge of centerfire rifled firearms.

35. Willcox Playa Wildlife Area (located in Unit 30A):

a. No change

b. No change

c. No change

d. Motorized vehicle travel permitted on designated roads, ~~on designated trails, or in designated areas~~ only. This subsection does not apply to Department authorized vehicles or law enforcement, fire response, or other emergency vehicles.

e. No change

f. No change

B. No change

1. No change

2. No change

3. No change

R12-4-803. Wildlife Area and Other Department Managed Property Boundary Descriptions

A. Wildlife Areas are described as follows:

1. No change

2. No change

3. No change

4. Arlington Wildlife Area: The Arlington Wildlife Area shall be those areas described as:

T1S, R5W

Section 33, E½SE¼

T2S, R5W

Section 3, W½ W½;

Section 4, E½; and Parcel 401-58-001A as described by the Maricopa County Assessor's Office;

Section 15, those portions of S½N½ and NW½SW¼ lying west of the primary through road;

Section 9;

Section 16;

Section 21, E½, E½SW¼, SE¼NW¼, and Parcel 401-61-008D as described by the Maricopa County Assessor's Office.

A parcel of land lying within Section 4, T2S, R5W, more particularly described as follows: commencing at the southwest corner of said Section 4, 2-inch aluminum cap (A.C.) in pothole stamped "RLS 36562", from which the northwest corner of said section, a 1 ½-inch brass cap (B.C.) stamped "T1S R5W S32 S33 S5 S4

1968", bears North 00°09'36" East (basis of bearing), a distance of 4130.10 feet, said southwest corner being the point of beginning; thence along the west line of said section, North 00°09'36" East, a distance of 16.65 feet; thence leaving said west line, South 89°48'28" East, a distance of 986.79 feet; thence North 00°47'35" East, a distance of 2002.16 feet; thence North 01°07'35" East, a distance of 2102.65 feet, to the north line of said section; thence along said north line, South 89°18'45" East, a distance of 1603.61 feet, to the north quarter corner of said section, a ½ inch metal rod; thence leaving said north line, along the north-south mid-section line of said section, South 00°08'44" East, a distance of 4608.75 feet, to the south quarter corner of said section, a 3-inch brass cap flush (B.C.F.) stamped "T2S R5W ¼S4 S9 RLS 46118 2008"; thence leaving said north-south mid-section line, along the south line of said section, North 79°10'54" West, a distance of 2719.41 feet, to the point of beginning. Subject to existing rights-of-way and easements. This parcel description is based on the Record of Survey for Alma Richardson Property, recorded in Book 996, page 25, Maricopa County Records (M.C.R.) and other client provided information. This parcel description is located within an area surveyed by Wood, Patel & Associates, Inc. during the month of April, 2008 and October, 2009 and any monumentation noted in this parcel description is within acceptable tolerance (as defined in Arizona Boundary Survey Minimum Standards dated 02/14/2002) of said positions based on said survey.

All in G&SRB&M, Maricopa County, Arizona.

5. Base and Meridian Wildlife Area: The Base and Meridian Wildlife Area shall be those areas described as:

T1N, R1E

Section 31

Lots 3, 5, 6, 7, and 8 and NE¼SW¼, S½S½S½SW¼NW¼ EXCEPT S½SE¼SE¼SW¼NW¼, SE¼SE¼SW¼NW¼, and that portion of the north half of the southeast quarter of Section 31, T1N, R1E, described as follows: commencing at the aluminum cap set at the east quarter corner of said Section 31, from which the 3" iron pipe set at the southeast corner of said Section 31 bears South 00°20'56" West 2768.49 feet; thence South 00°20'56" West along the east line of said southeast quarter of Section 31, 1384.25 feet to the southeast corner of said north half of the southeast quarter; thence South 89°25'13" West along the south line of said north half of the southeast quarter, 2,644.35 feet to the southwest corner of said north half of the southeast quarter and the point of beginning; thence North 00°03'37" West along the west line of said southeast quarter, 746.86 feet to the south line of the north 607.00 feet of said north half of the southeast quarter; thence North 88°46' 12" East along said south line of the north 607.00 feet of the north half of the southeast quarter, 656.09 feet; thence South 00°03'37" East parallel with said west line of the southeast quarter, 754.31 feet to said south line of the north half of the southeast quarter; thence south 89°25'13" West along said south line of the north half of the southeast quarter, 655.98 feet to the point of beginning.

T1N, R1W

Section 34, N½SE¼;

Section 35, S½;

Section 36, ~~S½N½SE¼~~.

The W½SE¼NE¼ EXCEPT any portion of said W½SE¼NE¼ of Section 36 lying within the following

described four parcels: EXCEPTION NO. 1: commencing at the Northeast corner of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of section 36; thence along the East line thereof South $00^{\circ}10'$ East 846.16 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing South $00^{\circ}18'$ East, a distance of 141.17 feet; thence South $87^{\circ}51'15''$ West, a distance of 570.53 feet; thence South $00^{\circ}29'$ East, a distance of 310.00 feet to the South line of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36; thence North $89^{\circ}29'$ West along the West line of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36, a distance of 425.93 feet; said point bears South $00^{\circ}29'$ East, a distance of 895.93 feet from the Northwest corner of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36; thence North $85^{\circ}54'33''$ East, a distance of 647.01 feet to the point of beginning. EXCEPTION NO. 2: commencing at the Northeast corner of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36; thence along the East line thereof South $00^{\circ}18'$ East, a distance of 846.16 feet to the point of beginning; said point being on the Northerly line of the Flood Control District of Maricopa County parcel as shown in Document No. 84-26119, Maricopa County Records; thence South $85^{\circ}54'33''$ West, a distance of 647.01 feet to the West line of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36; thence North $00^{\circ}29'$ West along said West line, a distance of 30 feet; thence North $84^{\circ}23'15''$ East, a distance of 228.19 feet; thence North $87^{\circ}17'06''$ East, a distance of 418.85 feet to the East line of the $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36; thence South $00^{\circ}18'$ East along said East line, a distance of 26.00 feet to the point of beginning. EXCEPTION NO. 3: The South 37.6 feet of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36. EXCEPT all oil, gas and other hydrocarbon substances, helium or other substance of gaseous nature, coal, metals, minerals, fossils, fertilizer of every name and description and except all materials which may be essential to the production of fissionable material as reserved in Arizona Revised Statutes. EXCEPTION NO. 4: That part of the West half of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter ($W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$) of Section 36, T1N, R1W lying North of the following described line: commencing at the Northeast corner of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36; thence along the East line thereof South $00^{\circ}18'00''$ East, a distance of 820.16 feet, to the point of beginning; said point being on the Northerly line of the Flood District of Maricopa County parcel as shown in Document 85-357813, Maricopa County Records; thence South $87^{\circ}17'06''$ West, a distance of 418.85 feet; thence South $84^{\circ}23'15''$ West, a distance of 228.19 feet to the West line of said $W\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36 and the point of terminus. The above described parcel contains 162,550 sq. ft. or 3.7316 acres. The Southeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter ($SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$) of Section 36, T1N, R1W, EXCEPT the South 37.6 feet of said $SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$, and EXCEPT the East 55 feet of said $SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$, and EXCEPT that part of said $SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ lying North of the most Southerly line of the parcel described in Record No. 84-026119, Maricopa County Records, said Southerly line being described as follows: beginning at the Northeast corner of the South half of the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter ($NE\frac{1}{4}S\frac{1}{2}NE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$) of said Section 36; thence South $00^{\circ}07'$ East along the East line of Section 36, a distance of 50.70 feet; thence South $89^{\circ}53'$ West, a distance of 55.00 feet to a point on the West line of the East 55.00 feet of said Section 36; thence South $00^{\circ}07'$ East along said line, a distance of 510.00 feet; thence South $81^{\circ}4'43''$ West, a distance of 597.37 feet to a terminus point on the West line of said $SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36, and EXCEPT that part of said $SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ described as follows: commencing at the East quarter corner of said Section 36; thence North $89^{\circ}37'23''$ West along the South line of said $SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}NE\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 36, a

distance of 241.25 feet; thence North 18°53'04" East, a distance of 39.65 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing North 18°53'04" East, a distance of 408.90 feet; thence South 81°04'43" West, a distance of 222.55 feet; thence South 18°53'04" West, a distance of 370.98 feet; thence South 89°37'23" East, a distance of 207.58 feet to the point of beginning. That portion of land lying within the Southeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of the Northeast quarter (SE¹/₄SE¹/₄NE¹/₄) of Section 36, T1N, R1W, and the South half of the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter (S¹/₂SW¹/₄NW¹/₄) of Section 31, T1N, R1E, as described in Document Number 99-1109246. EXCEPT the West 22 feet of the property described in Recorder Number 97-0425420, also known as Assessor Parcel No. 101-44-003G; and EXCEPT the West 22 feet of the property described in Recorder Number 97-566498, also known as Assessor Parcel No. 101-44-013.

All in the G&SRB&M, Maricopa County, Arizona.

6. No change
7. No change
8. No change
9. No change
10. No change
11. No change
12. No change
13. No change
14. No change
15. No change
16. No change
17. No change
18. No change
19. No change
20. No change
21. No change
22. Raymond ~~Ranch~~ Wildlife Area: The Raymond ~~Ranch~~ Wildlife Area is that area described as: All of Sections 24, 25, 26, 34, 35, 36, and the portions of Sections 27, 28, and 33 lying east of the following described line: Beginning at the west one-quarter corner of Section 33; thence northeasterly through the one-quarter corner common to Sections 28 and 33, one-quarter corner common to Sections 27 and 28 to the north one-quarter corner of Section 27 all in T19N, R11E. All of Sections 15, 16, 17, 19, 20, 21, 22, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, and 34 all in T19N, R12E, all in G&SRB&M, Coconino County, Arizona.
23. No change
24. No change
25. No change
26. No change
27. No change

- 28. No change
- 29. No change
- 30. No change
- 31. Upper Verde River Wildlife Area: The Upper Verde River Wildlife Area consists of ~~four~~ eight parcels totaling ~~1089~~ 1102.54 acres located eight miles north of Chino Valley in Yavapai County, Arizona, along the upper Verde River and lower Granite Creek described as:
 - ~~a-~~ No change
 - ~~b-~~ No change
 - ~~c-~~ No change
 - ~~d-~~ No change

Wells Parcels: Parcel No. 1 and Parcel No. 2: All that portion of Government Lots 9 and 10, Section 7, along with Lot 3 and the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter, Section 8, located in Township 17 North, Range 1 West, of the Gila and Salt River base and Meridian, Yavapai County, Arizona, further described as follows: Beginning at the Northwest corner of above said Lot 9, Section 7, which is common with the Southwest corner of Tract 41, (Corner No. 3) and common with the Southeast corner of Section 12, Township 17 North, Range 2 West, being marked with a found scribed stone as shown on that plat of record found in Book 35 of land surveys, pages 98-99, records of Yavapai County, from which a found one and one-quarter inch pipe with cap marking the Southwest corner of Section 12 bears South 87 ° 37'09" West 5485.60 feet (basis of bearing); thence South 85 ° 56'23" East 3421.35 feet along the Northerly line of said Lots 9 and 10, also being the Southerly line of Tract 41, to a set one-half inch rebar with plastic cap stamped l.s. 27738; thence South 01 ° 23'14" East 86.70 feet to a set one-half inch rebar with a plastic cap stamped l.s. 27738; thence South 53 ° 08'05" East 133.31 feet to a set one-half inch rebar with plastic cap stamped l.s. 27738 on the South line of Section 7; thence South 89 ° 59'19" West 935.04 feet along the South line of Section 7 to the South quarter corner thereof; marked with a found scribed stone; thence North 89 ° 57'37" West 2588.11 feet along the South line of Section 7 to the Southwest corner thereof, marked with a found scribed stone; thence North 00 ° 13'48" East 407.30 feet along the West line of Section 7 to the point of beginning. Containing 22.62 acres more or less. Including all that portion of Government Lots 9 and 10, Section 7, along with Lot 3 and the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter Section 8, located in Township 17 North, Range 1 West, of the Gila and Salt River base and Meridian, Yavapai County, Arizona, further described as follows; Commencing at the Northwest corner of above said Lot 9, Section 7, which is common with the Southwest corner of Tract 41, (Corner No. 3) and common with the Southeast corner Section 12, Township 17 North, Range 2 West, being marked with a found scribed stone as shown on that plat of record found in Book 35 of land surveys, pages 98-99, records of Yavapai County, from which a found one and one-quarter inch pipe with cap marking the Southwest corner of Section 12 bears South 87 ° 37'09" West 5485.60 feet (basis of bearing); thence South 85 ° 56'23" East 3471.35 feet along the Northerly line of said Lots 9 and 10, also being the Southerly line of Tract 41, to a set one-half inch rebar with a plastic cap stamped l.s. 27738 and the point of beginning for this parcel;

thence South 85 ° 56'23" East 353.84 feet along the Northerly line of said Lots 9 and 10, also being the Southerly line of Tract 41, to Corner No. 4 of Tract 41 marked with a found scribed stone; thence North 00 ° 13'26" East 1306.85 feet along the Westerly line of Lot 10, also being the Easterly line of Tract 41, to Corner No. 1 of Tract 41, marked with a found scribed stone; thence South 85 ° 59'32" East 1331.42 feet along the Northwesterly line of Lot 10, also being the Southerly line of Tract 40, Section 7, to Corner No. 4 of Tract 40, marked with a found scribed stone; thence North 00 ° 54'53" East 2613.54 feet along the Westerly line of Lot 10, also being the Easterly line of Tract 40, to the Northwest corner of Lot 10, said point being common with Corner No. 1, of Tract 40 and Corner No. 3, of Tract 39, and marked with a found one-half inch rebar r.l.s. 19353; thence South 89 ° 36'10" East 1332.34 feet along the Northerly lines of Lot 10, and Lot 3, of Section 8, also being the Southerly line of Tract 39, to Corner No. 4 of Tract 39 marked with a found scribed stone; thence North 00 ° 52'40" East 480.75 feet along the Westerly line of Lot 3 and the Easterly line of Tract 39, to the point of intersection with the Westerly line of the East half of the Northwest quarter Section 8, said point being the Northerly most corner of said Lot 3; thence South 00 ° 01'53" East 486.44 feet along the Easterly line of the West half of the Northwest quarter of Section 8, to the Southeasterly corner of Lot 3, which is also the Northeast corner of the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 8, and from which a one-half inch rebar with plastic cap r.l.s. 27738, set as a witness corner bears North 89° 50'31" West 3.00 feet; thence continuing from above said Northeasterly corner, South 00° 01'53" East 1317.89 feet to the Southeast corner of the Southwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 8, marked with a found one-half inch rebar r.l.s. 27738; thence North 89°50'52" West 1320.53 feet along the East-West midsection line of Section 8, to the West quarter corner thereof, marked with a found scribed stone; thence South 00°03'59" East 2635.36 feet to the Southwest corner of Section 8, marked with a found scribed stone; thence South 89°59'19" West 1642.26 feet along the South line of Section 7, to a set one-half inch rebar with a plastic cap stamped l.s. 27738; thence North 45°14'48" West 74.01 feet to a set one-half inch rebar with a plastic cap stamped l.s. 27738; thence North 26°54'11" West 124.47 feet to the point of beginning. Containing 88.488 acres more or less. Parcel No. 3 and Parcel No. 4: All that portion of the South half of Section 12 and the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 13, Township 17 North, Range 2 West, of the Gila and Salt River Base and Meridian, Yavapai County, Arizona, described as follows: BEGINNING at the Southwest corner of Section 12, marked with a found one and one-quarter inch pipe with cap as shown in Book 35, of land surveys, pages 98-99, records of Yavapai County, from which a found scribed stone marking the Southeast corner of Section 12 bears North 87°37'09" East 5485.60 feet (basis of bearing); thence North 02°06'55" East 1305.61 feet along the Westerly line of Section 12 to the Northwest corner of the Southwest quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 12 marked with a found nail in rock tagged rls 19353; thence North 87°48'37" East 1356.91 feet to the Northeast corner of the Southwest quarter of the Southwest quarter Section 12, marked with a found one-half inch rebar with plastic cap rls 27738; thence North 01°29'39" East 1300.03 feet to the Northwest corner of the Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter Section 12, marked with a found one-half inch rebar with plastic cap rls 27738; thence North 88°00'24" East 2677.55 feet to the

Northeast corner of the Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter Section 12, from which a found one-half inch rebar set as a witness corner bears South 00°04'23" West 183.13 feet; thence South 00°04'23" West 1289.18 feet to the Southeast corner of the Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter Section 12, marked with a found one-half inch rebar with plastic cap rls 19353; thence South 87°48'37" West 1353.25 feet to the Southwest corner of the Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter Section 12, marked with a found one-half inch rebar with plastic cap rls 27738; thence South 00°52'03" West 1294.59 feet to the Southeast corner of the Southeast quarter of the Southwest quarter Section 12, marked with a found one-half inch rebar with plastic cap rls 27738; thence South 87°37'09" West 1371.40 feet to the Northeast corner of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter Section 13, marked with a found one-half inch rebar with plastic cap rls 27738; thence South 00°42'41" East 1308.78 feet to the Southeast corner of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter Section 13, marked with a found one-half inch rebar with plastic cap rls 19353; thence South 87°46'38" West 1366.74 feet to the Southwest corner of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter Section 13, marked with a found one-half inch rebar with plastic cap rls 19353; thence North 00°54'41" West 1304.89 feet to the Northwest corner of Section 13 and the point of beginning. EXCEPT for the West half of the Southwest quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 12. Containing 181.89 acres more or less.

- 32. No change
- 33. No change
- 34. No change
- 35. No change

B. No change